
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny 
Commission 

 
Tuesday 30 January 2024 

7.00 pm 
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 

 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Chloe Tomlinson (Chair) 
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor  Joseph Vambe 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted member) 
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer (Co-opted member) 
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted member) 
Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted member) 

Councillor Maggie Browning 
Councillor Bethan Roberts 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Victoria Mills 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Sunil Chopra 
Councillor Adam Hood 
 

 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda 
as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, 
an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this 
meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at 
the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on 
building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the 
council’s web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
Amit Alva on email: amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk  

 

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk


 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Althea Loderick 
Chief Executive 
Date: 22 January 2024 
 

 
 



 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny 
Commission 

 

Tuesday 30 January 2024 
7.00 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an 
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 
Proposed amalgamation of St. Jude’s and Charlotte Sharman 
Primary Schools. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS. 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

1 - 10 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 
December 2023 (to follow) and 19 October 2023. 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

5. PROPOSED AMALGAMATION OF ST. JUDE'S AND 
CHARLOTTE SHARMAN PRIMARY SCHOOLS 

 

 

 To hear from the teachers at Charlotte Sharman Primary School on 
the proposed amalgamation with St. Jude’s C of E Primary School. 
 

 

6. IMPACT OF SCHOOL CLOSURES AND AMALGAMATIONS - 
HUMAN RESOURCES DATA 

 

11 - 55 

  
To receive a report from Alasdair Smith, Director of Children & 
Families, Children's and Adults' Services and Shereen Moussa, 
Head of Schools Human Resources, Children's and Adults' Services 
and the impact of school closures and amalgamations on: 
 

 Black and Asian Minority Ethnic (BAME) school staff and 
pupils 

 Male and Female members of school staff (data breakup) 

 LGBTQ staff 

 Disabled members of school staff  

 Senior Leadership Team in schools  

 School Support Staff (low-paid)  

 Governors 
 
In addition to this data on  
 

 BAME school staff disciplinary data 

 Flexible working requests in schools (job-shares, part-time) 
 
 

 

7. AN UPDATE ON EAST STREET MARKET RENOVATION 
PROJECT 

 

 

 To receive an update from R. Lindon and Shade Abdul on the East 
Street Market renovation project. 
 

 

8. CABINET MEMBER INTERVIEW- JOBS SKILLS AND BUSINESS 
( LOCAL ECONOMY) 

 

 

 To interview Councillor Martin Seaton the Cabinet Member for Jobs, 
Skills and Business covering a holistic overview of key strategies 
and projects under the portfolio, supported by Danny Edwards, 
Head of Economy. (Report to follow) 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME 2023-2024 
 

56 - 65 

 To consider the commission’s work programme for the year 2023-
2024. 
 

 

 
Date:  22 January 2024 
 
 



1 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission 
 

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Education and Local Economy Scrutiny 
Commission held on Thursday 19 October 2023 at 7.00 pm at Ground Floor 
Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH  
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Chloe Tomlinson (Chair) 

Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor  Joseph Vambe 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted member) 
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer (Co-opted member) 
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted member) 
Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted member) 
 
 

  
OFFICER 
SUPPORT:   

  
Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence was received from Councillor Jason Ochere and apologies 
for lateness from Councillor Joseph Vambe. 
 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS 
URGENT  

 

 There were no items of business which the Chair deemed urgent. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS.  
 

 There were no disclosures of interests and dispensations. 

Open Agenda
1

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

 

4. MINUTES  
 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2023 were approved as a correct record. 
 

5. SCHOOL AMALGAMATION/ CLOSURE OF ST MARY MAGDALENE C OF E 
PRIMARY SCHOOL  

 

 The commission first heard from Anna Harding, Head teacher on the plans for 
closure/amalgamation of the St Mary Magdalene C of E Primary School (SMMS) 
around the following points 
 

 Background info on SMMS; One form entry Church School is now Half form 
entry school with mixed age classes due to falling rolls, Ofsted inspection 
with good statutory results above national average, 96 pupils from a 
capacity of 210 pupils, High number of Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities (SEND) pupils, 37 Pupils on Educational, Health Care Plan 
(EHCP), 3% of children have no recourse to public funds, 51% of pupils 
eligible for pupil premium, In the lowest 10% of schools nationally under 
deprived demographic, 91% Black or mixed heritage pupils and 94% any 
non-white ethnic groups, high satisfaction and good overall experience from 
pupils and parents, experienced staff and well-loved school in the 
community. 

 Steps taken to avoid closures and amalgamations in the past; mixed age 
classes, restructured staff body, minimised redundancies, low budget deficit 
£27k, plans to open nursery/reception class on a temporary basis from 
January 2024, explored options to join Southwark Diocese and multi-
academy trust, other options for amalgamation also being considered but 
church schools are further away. 

 SEND pupils would struggle with transition if amalgamated, pupils have their 
educational, emotional and support needs met at this school. 

 Resource based provision for SEND would help the school to stay open. 

 Lack of communication from Council since May 2023 when proposal for 
amalgamation/closure was made, however meetings have taken place in 
the last week. 

 
The commission then heard from Sonia Phippard, Chair of Governors around the 
following themes 
 

 SMMS co-operating with the Council in line with the ‘Keeping Education 
Strong Strategy’, however due to lack of communication, it has delayed all 
options being explored until now which would have helped Pupil Admission 
Numbers. 

 Financially viable school and reducing budget deficit year by year. 
 

The commission then heard from Enuma Madu, parent on the following topics 

2



3 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

 

 Opening of Nursery/Reception school vital to the local area according to 
parents 

 SMMS the first choice of most parents in the area; excellent care and 
attention to pupils; safe and supportive environment. 

 Church schools are known to shy away from SEND pupils according to 
media reports but SMMS treats everyone with dignity and respect. 

 
 
 
The commission then heard from Reggie Osei-Bonsu, parent on the following 
themes 
 

 On exploring options for my child at reception level schools in the area, 
SMMS being smaller and private suited my child’s needs. 

 Excellent care and treatment of my relatives children made me choose 
SMMS 

 Relocation plans for the family outside London were cancelled due to the 
needs of my daughter who has received excellent care and support from 
SMMS. 
 

 The commission then heard from Remi-Leigh, parent on the following points 
 

 Undeniably warm and welcoming school making it a great asset to the 
community. 

 SMMS has a high number of SEND pupils, however not all SEND pupils 
need SEND schools depending on the degree of need, SMMS creates a 
tailored environment to accommodate a range of SEND needs. 

 Families have been supported thoroughly, parents like the option of 
choosing a smaller school 

 Lack of clear and transparent communication on the closure and 
amalgamation process which has created anxiety among parents and 
especially children 
 

The commission then heard from Damien, Parent Governor on the following topics 
 

 SMMS pillar of the community, nurturing and fostering young minds of the 
future generations 

 Immense ramifications for parents, staff and children if a decision is made to 
close the school. 

 Dedicated staff with 20-30 years of experience, high quality of education 
shown in Ofsted ratings 

 Generations of a family have chosen SMMS due to the uniqueness of the 
school unlike any other school in the borough 
 

The commission then asked questions on the following themes 
 

3



4 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

 Nursey plans; hours of operation, capacity and projected income  

 Organisation of School: breakfast club, wrap around after school provision 
and a 3 year reducing budget deficit plan 

 Council and councillor support to ensure that communications are made to 
ensure and assure parents that opening of a nursery school makes the 
school viable for applications next year. 
 

The commission then noted a statement from Martin Brecknell, Education 
Representative (Diocesan Board), and Co-opted member of the commission that 
the Diocesan Board have worked all throughout the process with the Council and 
SMMS and in no way have undermined the Council’s processes unlike the 
council’s perception of the board’s involvement.  
Anna explained to the commission that the nursery/reception would have 15 full 
time places (school hours, excluding school holidays), accepting children that have 
15-30 hrs free childcare with parents of 15 hr free child care having the option to 
top up the rest themselves. Feasibility study conducted earlier in the year indicated 
9-11 pupils’ projection for nursery, however due to the delay in process for nursery 
the numbers expected might change in January 2024. Income expected in the first 
term is approximately £15.5k and further growth can be expected. The breakfast 
club, after school club and holiday club are run by an external company called 
Ultimate Sports who work closely with school staff and are a part of the SMMS 
family. There is also a licensed 3 year deficit recovery plan base on the nursery 
bring SMMS budget into surplus in 3 years. 
  
The commission also heard from Anna that SMMS need improved 
communications, regular meetings with all stakeholders-council, councillors, 
diocesan board, teachers and governors. The council should explain the issues 
with viability of SMMS and all options need to be explored. 
 
The commission then asked questions on the following topics 
 

 Process behind the idea of the nursery initiative 

 Proportion of pupils belonging to different faiths; Catholic, Church of 
England etc. making it more difficult to find schools with the similar faiths to 
amalgamate with. 

 Exodus of students from SMMS due to news of uncertainty over the future 
of the school 
 

Sonia explained to the commission that primarily the motivation behind the nursery 
was due to parent needs although there is a budget benefit in it. Early knowledge 
of children’s needs in nursery such as SEND helps the staff give better care, 
support and a better start to the child’s education as compared to ascertaining 
needs in year one. SMMS has a more Angelical and Pentecostal approach 
towards faith which suit the diversity of students within SMMS, while the proposed 
amalgamated School St. Johns and Clements has a more Higher Anglican 
approach to faith although both are excellent church schools. Applications this year 
are lower due to the news of closure/amalgamation proposal, so looking forward to 
the nursery and this would need an admission applications process for September 

4



5 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

2024 to be advertised. 
 
The commission heard from Anna that SMMS is chosen by parents mainly due to 
the ethos and core Christian values rather than faith places. There has been a loss 
4-6 pupils next year due to the uncertainty over the future of the school. SMMS has 
had to reject 12 applications in year 1&2 and year 5&6 as their full in capacity 
indicating that it is still a popular choice. 
 
The commission then noted possible recommendations 
 

 In line with ‘Keeping Education Strong’ strategy all options are explored 
flexibly on proposals for closure/amalgamations of schools 

 Improved communications and regular meetings and engagements with all 
stakeholders  

 Equality Impact Assessments are carried out and shared with schools 
before any proposals for closure/ amalgamations are made. 

 

6. THE RESTRUCTURE OF KINTORE WAY NURSERY SCHOOL AND 
CHILDREN'S CENTRE.  

 

 The commission then received a report from Rebecca Sherwood, Kintore Way 
(KW) Nursery School and Children’s Centre and Matthew Waterfall from National 
Association of Headteachers (NAHT) on the restructure of Kintore Way Nursey 
School on the following themes 
 

 Impact of the changes at Kintore Way nursery would have on the wider 
community and especially SEND children in the community. 

 One of the largest and oldest nursery schools in the country, financial issues 
at KW due to the failing of the funding process to address the unmet needs 
of Children with SEND. 

 Detrimental impact on children, families and community at KW, not being 
able to access those services due to restructuring resulting in more difficult 
situation for children and families 

 KW provides outstanding services to most vulnerable children and has a 
Ofsted rating of excellent, 15 redundancies among staff are planned 
sending shockwaves through the community, highly subscribed and full 
capacity nursery, 34 families on waiting list. 

 Current funding does not account for children under 5 with SEND when 
these children go to special schools and are deferred back to nursery, the 
nurseries receive £6k compared to £33k going to special schools if the child 
is accepted. The budget deficit is a result of the mismatch in SEND funding 
for Nurseries providing SEND services. 

 Need for Council strategy for Early Intervention and SEND provisions in 
Nursery which would provide greater value for money for children with 
SEND and make a difference in the community. 

 Resource based provisions is being applied in other neighbouring boroughs 
who have identified the gap in funding for SEND in nurseries. 

5



6 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

 Lack of communication from Council with regards to the restructure and 
decreasing the budget deficit. 
 

The commission then heard from a parent (anonymous), Rebecca and Mathew on 
the following themes 
 

 Non-verbal children, families are hugely dependent on nurseries like KW. 

 SEND children need early adult interaction within the window of opportunity 
in early years to help with their cerebral development. 

 Parents often don’t have the skills and expertise to deal with SEND needs 
and as a consequence suffer from mental health issue themselves, KW has 
been a respite for such parents. 

 
 
The commission then heard from Michelle, parent and Brenda, (ex-parent of KW) 
on the following topics 
 

 Immense support and love, staff give children at KW, as a result the child 
does really well at special schools 

 Staff at KW have helped parents get through the EHCP process; SEND 
children at KW are helped to be more sociable, articulate and independent. 

 KW staff have also helped children and families through bereavements 
 

The commission then heard from Claire, teacher at Grove & KW nurseries on the 
following points 
 

 Staff at Grove & KW are highly skilled in performing tracheostomies, eye 
drops, tube feeding and diabetic injections within the class room 
environment for children with special needs 

 Reducing the number of staff will have a devastating impact on the children 
with special needs; current staff are highly skilled, experienced, dedicated 
and motivated to provide such medical care.  
 

The commission then asked questions on the following topics 
 

 Experience with Southwark and KW interaction; redundancy costs would 
cost more than the current costs 

 Current central government funding of SEND does not include early years 
help, learning from practices in other boroughs; as Southwark is also facing 
significant budgetary pressures 

 Redundancy time frames would help inform the upcoming budget for next 
year 

 Clarity on nursery based resource provision and accelerating the EHCP 
process 
 

Matthew explained to the commission that there are specific examples of resource 
based provision centres which have worked in providing value for services in the 

6



7 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

long term, and that this would be provided to the commission later in an email. 
 
Rebecca informed the commission that the school has to pay £116k in pensions 
and School in Difficulty Panel would provide the £115k in redundancy costs. 
Southwark has been provided with Service Level Agreements on resources based 
provision and many such examples from Lambeth and Wandsworth boroughs are 
already in place. Current SEND Inclusive Funding of £1200/term for under 5 can 
take almost a year to process and by then the child reaches special schools who 
then receive EHCP funding for the entire amount of £33k. Previous practices 
involved back dating pay to nurseries which has now been discontinued, as a 
result nurseries unable to cover costs of teaching assistants and SEND staff who 
have supported the child for a year. 
 
The commission agreed that there is a need to review early years SEND funding 
for children under 5 in nurseries which is a national issue 
 
The Chair suggested a recommendation on exploring all possible options with 
regards to the restructuring at Kintore Way Nursery including 
 

i. Early years SEND funding (EHCP) for children under 5 in nurseries 
ii. Pilot programme of Resource Based Provision proposed for 3 posts of staff 

supporting 20 SEND children in a designated area of the nursery 
iii. Clearly devise a short and long term plan for reducing the budget deficit 

ensuring long term financial sustainability 
 
The commission heard from Rebecca that the current budget deficit at KW is over 
£1m, any action taken now would not have any effect on the planned 
redundancies. However, staff who have received have been kept informed of the 
conversations with trade unions and the council and that they would be informed if 
there is a change in circumstances by December 2023. On resource based 
provision, a pilot is being proposed for 3 posts of staff supporting 20 SEND 
children in a designated area of the nursery. Some of the current staff are willing to 
stay at KW. 
 

7. EMPLOYMENT FOR YOUNG PEOPLE IN SOUTHWARK  
 

 The commission then received a report from Patrick Doherty, Principal Strategy 
Officer on youth employment on the following points 
 

 New Economic Strategy to be adopted by Cabinet by the end of the year, 
strategy involves new jobs and opportunities for young people 

 Southwark Youth Deal- employment services and advice 

 Southwark Works- employment service commissioned for another 4 years 
split amongst 9-10 contracts, and one for people over 50 with specialist 
skills; 3 contracts for vulnerable young people been in criminal justice 
system and young people with disabilities  

 Council’s Internal Apprenticeships service, External apprenticeships through 

7



8 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

Passport centre and through LSBU Centre, Southwark Construction Centre 
and Green Skills hub 

 Council Delivery Plan to deliver 250 paid internships for youth from 
disadvantaged back grounds spread across 3 strand schools, graduates 
and councils own scheme has been very successful 

 Southwark Local Offer and Southwark Information and Advice Service 
targeting young people with SEND 

 Education Business Alliance bringing together Businesses and Schools 
preparing students for the transition to jobs from education 

 Sub–regional partnerships such as Central London Works open to 
Southwark residents’ aged 16-25 and Youth Opportunities bullet in for 
young people in Southwark to sign up. 

 One hub website and care leavers website targeting young people 
 

The commission then asked questions on the following topics 
 

 Southwark Works visibility and advertising in the borough; support for young 
people below the age of 18 

 Apprenticeships numbers when compared to other boroughs; creative ways 
to reach young people; Southwark Works contracts promotion in the 
community 

 Potential collaboration with organisation to increase visibility of Southwark 
works; ex-offender support and rehabilitation to get back into work 
 

Patrick apologised to the commission on the framing of the phrase aged 18 and 
above in Southwark contracts as a typo. Within Southwark works contracts young 
people aged 16 and above have contracts available to them if they face barriers to 
employment. Southwark has successfully met targets for past two terms of 2500 
apprenticeships, however benchmarking against other borough will be provided to 
commission at a later date. Providers within contracts are assessed on a two year 
term with an option to extend based on performance. Southwark Youth Deal within 
the New Economic Strategy is aimed at filling the gaps in publicity and spreading 
awareness of job opportunities and apprenticeships amongst young people. 
Specific contracts are tailored for ex-offenders and providers are measured against 
placement and sustaining jobs as a metric; such contracts are limited due to 
budgetary and resource constraints. However, Southwark has been quite 
successful in achieving value for money. Southwark has also an integrated 
network co-ordination service which has successfully linked many partners in the 
borough for over 20 years, however there is room for improvement as it’s not 
perfect. Southwark is also working on an Outreach and Engagement plan to gauge 
the reach of such initiatives in the community. 
 
The commission then asked further questions on the following themes 
 

 Education Business Alliance – communication between the private sector 
and community based initiatives, pooling resources and synergy 

 Internships figure too low, evaluating performance of programmes, no. of 
apprenticeships in last 5 years 

8



9 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

 Graduate scheme only for graduates or one year after graduation 
 

Patrick explained to the commission that Education Business Alliance sits within a 
different department in the council and not local economy, answers to the question 
will be provided at a later date. Internships targets of 250 was set by Cabinet and 
officers did not have any input in it. On evaluation of programmes, last year an 
independent review was done by an external organisation called Rocket Science 
appointed by the council, to compare similar programmes in other boroughs, where 
in Southwark Works outperformed most comparative programmes. However, there 
were some improvements needed in working with clients for job opportunities and 
working with clients to train them for the jobs available.  
 
The commission will be provided data on apprenticeships at a later date and also 
that council is working on reviewing the apprenticeship programme. 
 
The commission agreed that graduate scheme needs to be reviewed with regards 
to graduates being supported 1-2 years after graduation as Universities already 
support students about to graduate.  
 
The commission also agreed to ask in the Cabinet Member Interviews on 
internship targets that were set so low at 250 as many organisations involved could 
provide external paid internships. 
 

8. CABINET RESPONSE TO EDUCATION AND LOCAL ECONOMY SCRUTINY 
REVIEW: MITIGATING FALLING PUPIL NUMBERS IN SCHOOLS  

 

 The Cabinet response was noted by the commission. 
 

9. CABINET RESPONSE TO EDUCATION AND LOCAL ECONOMY SCRUTINY 
REVIEW: IMPACT OF COST OF LIVING CRISIS ON BUSINESSES  

 

 The Cabinet response was noted by the commission. 
 

10. PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME 2023-2024  
 

 The commission noted the proposed Work Programme for 2023-24. 
 

9



10 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 19 October 2023 
 

 Meeting ended at 9.18 pm 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

  

  
 

10



1 

Item 
No. 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
30 January 2024 

Decision Taker: 
Education and Local 
Economy Scrutiny 
Commission 

Report title: Workforce Impact of Amalgamations and 
Closures of Council Maintained Schools 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 

All 

From: Shereen Moussa, Head of Schools Human 
Resources, Southwark Council  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Education and Local Economy

Scrutiny Commission about the impact on the Southwark schools workforce

of amalgamations and closures of council maintained schools in relation to:

ethnicity; gender; sexuality; and disability.

2. The report will consider these in relation to: school support staff; teachers;

and school senior leadership teams.

3. The report will also present data on ethnicity and formally recorded

disciplinary action in council maintained schools.

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission note this report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

What is a council maintained school (education legal context) 

3. A council maintained school is a school funded by the local authority. The

funding comes from government, through the Department for Education to

the council, to be distributed to maintained schools following strict financial

regulations.

4. The School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (as amended) sets out the

different types of maintained schools and how they are governed.

5. The main types of maintained schools are:

 community schools, which are sometimes called local authority

maintained schools - they are not influenced by business or religious

groups and follow the national curriculum

6

11
Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/national-curriculum


2 

 foundation schools and voluntary aided schools, which are funded
by the local authority but have more freedom to change the way they
do things - sometimes they are supported by representatives from
religious groups

 academies and free schools, which are run by not-for-profit academy
trusts, are independent from the local authority - they have more
freedom to change how they run things and can follow a different
curriculum

6. There are 70 primary schools in Southwark. 51 (73%) are maintained, 19

(27%) are non-maintained.  Of the maintained schools 29 are community

schools, 10 are Church of England voluntary aided schools, 10 are Roman

Catholic voluntary aided schools, 2 are foundation schools.

7. There are 20 secondary schools in the borough. 2 (1%) are maintained,

(99%) are non-maintained.

8. The School Staffing (England) Regulations 2009 (as amended) sets out the

school’s governing board’s responsibilities for the appointment,

management and dismissal of staff in their schools regardless of school

status. It also sets out the council’s obligations in terms of employment.

What schools have amalgamated or been closed in the last year 

9. During the academic year September 2022 to July 2023 the following

schools have amalgamated or closed:

10. Cobourg and Camelot Primary Schools amalgamated in August 2023 to

form Bird in Bush Primary School. These schools were both community

schools, maintained by the council

11. Townsend Primary School closed in August 2023. This was a community

school, maintained by the council.

12. St Francesca Cabrini Primary School closed in August 2023. This was a

voluntary aided school, maintained by the council.

13. Harris Academy Free and Harris Park Academy Primary Schools

amalgamated in August 2023. Harris Academy Free Primary School closed

and Harris Park Academy Primary School continues. These are an

academy schools not maintained by the council.

14. No secondary or special schools were amalgamated or closed.

15. In summary in the last year two maintained primary schools amalgamated

to form one new school, two academy primary schools amalgamated into

one primary school, and two other maintained primary schools closed.

12



3 

The council’s duties as an employer for maintained schools 

16. Community schools operate under a distinctive governance structure,

with a dual employer system comprised of the governing board and the

council.

17. In line with its statutory duty, the council delegates the financial

responsibilities to the governing board, granting them the authority to make

crucial employer decisions. This includes the appointment of staff, including

the headteacher.

18. Most governing boards delegate most staffing decisions to the

headteacher. Therefore, the governing board, or as may be delegated by

them, the headteacher, assumes responsibility for a spectrum of decisions,

ranging from day-to-day management to overarching strategic choices.

19. The council has a range of statutory employer functions it performs. For

example it confirms the appointment and dismissal of staff, following the

governing board’s decision, but plays no other part in that decision making

process. The local authority also sets the terms and conditions for which

staff employed in these schools are appointed on.

20. In summary, the governing board of each council maintained community

school is legally responsible and accountable for staffing decisions. These

are not the responsibility of the council. The council is an arm's length

employer in those schools where it is also legally the employer and does

not become involved in day-to-day operational decisions.

21. Voluntary aided schools are often, but not always, church or faith schools.

Although these schools are maintained and received funding through the

local authority, the local authority has no employer responsibilities.

Voluntary aided schools have greater autonomy than other maintained

schools in terms of admissions, employment of staff and religious

education. The Diocese is the responsible body for voluntary aided schools.

22. Academies are funded directly by the Department for Education (DfE) and

operate independently of the council. The council does not any statutory

employer responsibilities.

Other matters 

23. The reasons for the amalgamation and closures were to manage the

impact of falling pupil rolls on its primary schools, as part of the council’s

Keeping Education Strong Strategy, agreed by cabinet in December 2022.

24. In July 2023, the Commission heard from the National Education Union

(NEU) perspectives on equalities within schools in the borough. School

amalgamations and closures: those relating to two schools closures were

said to disproportionately affect non-white and support staff. No data or

evidence was provided to support this view. The NEU stated they would

like to gather that data.

13



4 

25. These matters had not been raised previously through the established

liaison meetings between the Unions and the council about schools and

education matters.  The report, whilst offering a glimpse into HR cases

involving the NEU only, did not provide a comprehensive overview of

equalities across Southwark schools. It also presented several

assumptions regarding staffing and HR practice in schools.

Equality Act 2010 – legal context 

26. The Equality Act 2010 protects everyone in England and Wales. It applies

to all schools, regardless of type. The Act covers the following protected

characteristics: sex; race; religion or belief; sexual orientation; gender

reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; age; disability; marriage and civil

partnership. Age and marriage and civil partnership only apply in schools

in relation to employment. They do not apply to pupils.

27. The Equality Act also introduced the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED).

This applies to schools. In line with this general duty, schools are required

to ‘have due regard to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination and other conduct that is prohibited by the

Equality Act 2010.

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected

characteristic and people who do not share it.

 Foster good relations across all characteristics, between people who

share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.

28. The duty itself requires the school to:

 Publish information to demonstrate how the school is complying with

the PSED; and

 Prepare and publish equality objectives.

29. Whenever a school is making a significant decision, they must give thought

to the implications it will have on equality. There is no legal requirement to

provide a written record however it is good practice that an equalities impact

assessment is completed, as a written record.

30. Schools complete the equalities impact assessment, based on the

information they hold, which employees provide as part of the equalities

monitoring form when they start.

31. As part of the Southwark Schools Reorganisation, Redundancy and

Redeployment Policy and Procedure, there is an equalities impact

assessment form.

14



5 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

Data protection considerations 

32. There is a duty of confidentiality and safeguarding in relation to the personal

data of individuals. In adherence with the UK GDPR Regulations this report

does not provide information identifying individual schools to mitigate the

risk of potential direct or indirect identification of individuals, given the

relatively small scale of data involved.

33. In line with the Data Protection Act 2018 schools are the data controller of

the personal data it collects and retains. As the data controller, this means

schools are required to register with the Information Commissioner’s Office.

34. The responsibility and accountability for compliance for data protection sits

with schools governors in state schools. The council has no oversight or

control of the data that schools retain.

35. The governing board of each school is deemed to be the data controller for

the purposes of the Data Protection Act 2018. Data is only a partial

snapshot of staffing matters in Southwark, based on the data held through

Southwark Schools’ HR Service.

36. It is important to note that when employees are asked for personal data

regarding their protected characteristics, there is no legal requirement for

them to disclose this information.

Data within this report 

37. The following sections of this report only presents data about

amalgamations and closures of council maintained schools, that is from the

amalgamation of Cobourg and Camelot Primary Schools, and the closures

of Townsend and St Francesca Cabrini Primary Schools.

38. The report does not present data relating to academies. These schools

operate autonomously from the council as set out above and thus the

council holds no data on them.

39. The data within this report is thus only partial representation of the impact

of changes across schools in the borough based on the data collected by

Southwark Schools Human Resources Service as part of its work with

council maintained community schools.

40. The data below outlines the characteristics of those staff who were made

redundant across all schools. It does not contain data relating to staff who

were redeployed. In the one school amalgamation only four staff were

made redundant, the rest were redeployed in the nearby new Bird in Bush

school or obtained roles in another school.

41. Appendix one sets out taken from the School Workforce Census (SWFC).

This is an annual DfE collection of school held data as follows: age;

disability; sex; gender and ethnicity.  The commission may find this helpful

context for their consideration of data in relation to the schools workforce.

15



6 

Job type 

42. The tables below set out the staffing breakdown by job type.

Schools Support Staff 
Teachers 
(includes SLT) 

Total Staff 
Impacted 

Total 34 18 52 

% 65% 35% 100% 

Support Staff – Analysis by job type Total % 

Admin 8 24% 

Catering 3 9% 

Cleaner 3 9% 

Midday Supervisor 5 15% 

Nursery 2 6% 

Premises 3 9% 

Teaching Assistant 10 29% 

Total 34 100% 

Teacher Staff – Analysis by job type Total Total 

Senior Leadership Team 6 33% 

Teachers 10 56% 

Unqualified Teacher 1 6% 

Higher Level Teaching Assistant 1 6% 

Total 18 100% 

43. Support staff were more impacted, compared to teachers (including SLT)

at 65% of the total workforce.

44. Teaching Assistants were the highest category of support staff (29%),

followed by Admin staff (24%).

45. SLT in the teaching category include Headteachers, Deputy Headteachers

and Assistant Headteachers. They accounted for 33% of total teachers

impacted.

46. Most teachers impacted were qualified teachers at 56%.

16



7 

Gender 

47. The tables below set out how staff identify themselves by gender.

Support Staff Female Male Total 

Total 27 7 34 

% 79% 21% 100% 

Teachers 
(Includes SLT ) 

Female Male Total 

Total 14 4 18 

% 78% 22% 100% 

48. Primary schools tend to attract more female workers compared to male
than secondary schools. The proportion is the same amongst support staff
and teachers.

49. The data demonstrates that most support staff (79%) and teachers
including SLT (78%) impacted were female. This is in line with the
demographic make-up of staff working in all schools in Southwark, based
on the 2023 School Workforce Census – 83.2% of all staff employed in
Southwark maintained schools identify as female.

50. The data collection does not ask individuals how they identify, which may
be different to their assigned gender at birth. For this reason, it has not been
possible to establish if any staff identify as transgender.

Disability 

51. The tables below set out those staff who identified themselves as being

disabled.

Disability- Support Staff Total % of Total Staff 

Disability 2 6% 

Non Disability 31 94% 

Total 33 100% 

Disability - Teachers Staff Total % of Total Staff 

Disability 0 0% 

Non Disability 18 50% 

Total 18 50% 

52. 6% of support staff identified themselves as having a disability. This is

compared to 0% of teachers (including SLT).

17



8 

53. Disclosing a disability is an individual choice and it depends on whether the

individual considers they have a disability and whether they need any

adjustments in the workplace.

54. Where an employee has disclosed their disability and their needs,

reasonable adjustments would be put in place.

Working patterns 

55. The tables below set out the impact on staff by working pattern.

Working Pattern- Support Staff Total % Total 

Full Time 20 59% 

Part Time 14 41% 

Not Confirmed 0 0% 

Total 34 100% 

Working Pattern- Teacher Staff Total % Total 

Full Time 15 83% 

Part Time 3 17% 

Not Confirmed 0 0% 

Total 18 100% 

56. Schools tend to operate on a term time only basis, so that staff are

specifically employed and available during term time to meet the needs of

the children.

57. Schools also interpret support staff carrying out full time working as working

at 32.5 hours a week, even though they work term time only and not all year

round.  The data includes staff in this category, such as teaching assistants

and nursery staff, as well as staff who work 36 hours a week, all year round,

such as the administrative and premises staff.

58. Support staff who were deemed to be full time were most impacted by the

changes (59%).

59. Teaching staff, including SLT, who were full time (83%) were most

impacted.

18



9 

Age 

Age Group (Support Staff) Total % Total 

Under 30 0 0% 

31 - 40 4 12% 

41 - 50 6 18% 

51 - 60 12 35% 

Over 60 12 35% 

Total 34 100% 

Age Group (Teacher Staff) Total % Total 

Under 30 1 6% 

31 - 40 5 28% 

41 - 50 6 33% 

51 - 60 4 22% 

Over 60 2 11% 

Total 18 100% 

60. Schools tend to have a stable support staff workforce, who predominantly
are locally based.

61. Teachers tend to move more frequently and there are known recruitment
and retention challenges in the profession.

62. The age data should be considered against this context on the basis that
support staff age demographic is higher at the 41 – 50 and 51 – 60 age
groups. Those staff also tend to have longer service.

63. Teachers in the 41 – 50 age group were impacted most (33%).

19



10 

Ethnic Background 

64. The tables below set out the staffing breakdown by ethnicity.

Support Staff- Ethnic Background Total % 

Another Mixed Background 1 3% 

White British 12 35% 

Black British 1 3% 

White Irish 3 9% 

Another White Background 1 3% 

Any other ethnic group 7 21% 

Not known 1 3% 

Black African 1 3% 

Black Caribbean 7 21% 

Total 34 100% 

Teachers- Ethnic Background (Includes 
SLT) 

Total % 

Another Mixed Background 2 11% 

White British 9 50% 

Black British 0 0% 

White Irish 3 17% 

Another White Background 1 6% 

Any other ethnic group 1 6% 

Not known 0 0% 

Black African 1 6% 

Black Caribbean 1 6% 

Total 18 100% 

65. Support staff from White British background were most impacted by the

change (35%). This was followed by those who identified as either being

from Any Other Ethnic Group (21%) and Black Caribbean (21%).

66. Teachers (including SLT) from White British background were most

impacted by the change (50%).  This was followed by White Irish (17%).

20



11 

Disciplinary actions – employee relations context 

67. The following section presents information and data relating to formal

disciplinary action in council maintained schools.

Legal framework 

68. The Employment Rights Act 1996 sets out the statutory framework for

disciplinary procedures in the UK. Employers are required to follow a fair

and reasonable process before taking disciplinary action against an

employee.

69. Disciplinary proceedings refer to the process by which employers address

and manage alleged misconduct or breaches of workplace rules committed

by employees.

70. The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) provides a Code

of Practice on Disciplinary and Grievance Procedures. While not legally

binding, employment tribunals take the ACAS Code into account when

assessing whether an employer has acted fairly.

71. The council’s Schools Human Resources model policies and procedures

are in line with the ACAS Code.

School policies and procedures 

72. Southwark Schools Human Resources consult and work with the

recognised trade unions on changes and updates to the model human

resources policies and procedures that maintained schools adopt.

73. Whilst schools are required to have a disciplinary (and grievance) policy

and procedure in place, the governing board is responsible for the adoption

by the school of these policies and procedures.

74. In the case of voluntary aided schools, both the Catholic Education Service

(in the case of Catholic schools) and the Southwark Diocesan Board of

Education (in the case of Church of England schools) issue their own model

policies and procedures.

75. Most maintained community schools in Southwark tend to adopt the

Southwark Schools Human Resources Model policies and procedures but

it should be emphasised these policies once adopted by the school are

those of the school, not the council.

 School staff disciplinary data 

76. For the purposes of this report, the data provided in this section is limited

to where Southwark Schools Human Resources have been involved in

providing advice to the school in question. The majority of schools buying

into the Southwark Schools HR Service are council maintained schools.

This report therefore only provides a partial overview of disciplinary cases

within Southwark schools because as set out above, the council’s

responsibilities as an employer, and thus human resources functions, are

limited.

21



12 

77. The information provided regarding all disciplinary data is for the academic

year 2022 – 2023 and includes the following:

a. Formal disciplinary cases across all trade unions, for comparison

purposes.

b. This includes cases at the formal hearing stage.

c. Staffing analysis by all different ethnic group categories, for comparison

purposes.

78. It does not include any disciplinary cases that are being managed informally

or that have not progressed to a formal hearing.

79. The purpose of this section is not to highlight individual cases, but rather to

provide an overview of cases, by ethnicity and the outcome of those formal

hearings.

Data analysis – quantity and type 

80. In 2022/23, the total number of disciplinary matters investigated by schools

that were taken to a formal disciplinary. Below is a table of the number and

type of such hearings.

Case Type Number of School 

Misconduct 1 

Gross Misconduct 1 

Safeguarding 3 

Grand Total 5 

81. This data does not include the number of disciplinary cases being managed

by schools that are being managed as part of management action and have

not escalated to a formal hearing.

82. The Schools Workforce Data Return records 3,170 employees in council

maintained schools in the borough. The total number of formal disciplinary

hearings relates to 0.002% of employees.

Unions Number of School 

External and unrecognised 

Trade Union 

1 

GMB 3 

NEU 1 

Grand Total 5 

83. The legislation governing trade unions and their members is the Trade
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

84. Most workers in the UK have the right to join a trade union of their choice.

85. There are various trade unions in the UK, each representing the interests
of specific groups of workers.

22



13 

86. Southwark Council, as a public body, recognises and engages with certain
trade unions for the purposes of collective bargaining.

87. Individuals can choose to join a trade that is not recognised by Southwark
Council.

88. In this analysis, a trade union unrecognised by Southwark Council was
representing one employee, who was subject to a formal hearing.

89. In the other four cases, a recognised trade union represented those
employees.

90. Regardless of whether the trade union is recognised or not, the same
principles and procedural framework would apply to the formal hearing
process.

Data analysis – ethnicity. 

91. In 4 out of the 5 cases (80%) employees are from either any other black
background or black Caribbean.

92. According to the data in the School Workforce Census, the highest category
of staff employed across all phases in Southwark class themselves as
White (62.3%). (This category includes White British).

93. Black or Black British staff are 19.4% of the total workforce.

94. On the basis of the stats, a higher proportion of staff from Black or Black
British background have had a formal disciplinary hearing, compared to
White staff members.

Case Type Any other black background Black Caribbean White British 

Disciplinary 0 0 1 

Gross 

misconduct 

0 1 0 

Safeguarding 1 2 0 

95. Three of the cases relate to safeguarding. All staff in schools are required
to adhere to Keeping Children Safe in Education (KSCIE), which is updated
annually in September. This is a statutory document.

96. Staff in schools are required to adhere to the school’s policies and
procedures, including the Code of Conduct.

23



14 

Data analysis of formal disciplinary hearings 

97. There were 2 dismissals, compared to 3 warning outcomes.

Outcome Number of 

employees 

Any other black 

background 

Black 

Caribbean 

White 

British 

Dismissal – Gross Misconduct 1 1 

Dismissal on SOSR – 

relationship breakdown 

1 1 

Final Written Warning 1 1 

Second Written warning 1 1 

Written Warning 1 1 

Grand Total 5 

Conclusions 

98. The potential impact of taking someone through the disciplinary process

could result in sanctions including up to dismissal. Schools do not tend to

take this lightly.

99. On this basis, schools are required to ensure that all reasonable

management action has been taken in line with employment law and

reasonable management action.

100. Where Southwark Schools Human Resources Service is involved in

advising the school, they work with the school governance team to ensure

that the panel of governors hearing a case are representative.

101. In all cases, dismissal should always be the last resort.

Flexible working requests 

102. The following section presents information relating to flexible working

requests in council maintained schools.

103. The legal framework for flexible working is governed by the Employment

Rights Act 1996 and the Flexible Working Regulations 2014. The DfE have

also published guidance for schools in implementing flexible working.

104. In Southwark schools manage their own flexible working requests. On this

basis this is not an area that the council’s Schools Human Resources

Service is routinely involved in or collects and holds data about. Individual

schools would need to be approached for such data.

School Governors Diversity Data 

105. The following section presents information relating to council maintained

schools governors.

106. There is currently no statutory obligation to record governing board diversity

data, although the DfE released guidance in 2023 to encourage schools to

collate and publish this data on school websites.

107. Southwark Governor Services are working with their governor database

partners, GovernorHub, to collect this data from spring 2024.

24



15 

108. This data collection will form part of a ‘business as usual’ approach to allow

for a continued, up to date picture of diversity in governance across the

borough.

109. GovernorHub is the governance database service provided to all schools

across the borough to fulfil the council’s statutory obligation to maintain a

governor database.

110. Southwark Governor has recently supported the launch of the ‘Inclusive

Governance’ initiative created by Governors for Schools, who the service

partners with to support governor recruitment. As well as the above,

Governor Services has worked with governing boards to provide anti-racist

training in governance.

111. The service commissioned the expertise of Liz Pemberton (The Black

Nursery Manager), to deliver anti-racist training to governing boards, as

well as working closely with the SST education work stream leads to ensure

governors remain up to date with progress and areas of development in this

work stream.

END OF REPORT 

25



16 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 School Workforce Census Analysis – All Staff in 
Maintained Schools  

Appendix 2 School Workforce Census Analysis – Senior Leaders in 
Maintained Schools  

Appendix 3 Southwark Population Data 

Appendix 4 Benchmarking of Southwark School Staffing Data (SWFC) 

26



17 

Appendix 1 

SCHOOL WORKFORCE CENSUS ANALYSIS – ALL STAFF IN MAINTAINED SCHOOLS 

1. The School Workforce Census (SWFC) is a statutory data collection that takes place each autumn.

2. The census collects data relating to teachers and support staff in maintained schools and centrally employed education roles in

the local authority.

3. This data does not include information from the independent sector (that includes academies and free schools).

4. The following analysis is based on the data from the SWFC 2023 (as of November 2023).

5. It is based on headcount, rather than the number of contracts. Analysing the data in this way removes the double counting of

employees with multiple contracts at a school. Out of 3,170 employee records reported in the SWFC, 461 employees have/ had

multiple contracts (of between two to four).

6. Southwark Council completes this analysis on an annual basis and shares this with the trade unions, tabled for discussion in

the Officer/Trade Union Divisional Liaison Meetings.

27



18 

Headcount 

School Phase All Reported Staff in SWC 2023 

Nursery 125 

Primary 2,435 

Secondary 263 

Special & PRU 300 

LA Centrally Employed 47 

Southwark LA Maintained 3,170 

7. This is the total number of staff in the maintained sector and those employed in education roles in the local authority.

8. The largest number of staff are employed in the primary maintained sector.

9. The numbers for secondary schools only include those in the maintained sector and therefore, staffing in academies and free
schools are excluded from this data.

28



19 

Teacher or Support Staff 

School Phase 
Teacher 
(no.) 

Support 
Staff (no.) 

Teacher 
(%) 

Support 
Staff (%) 

All Reported 
Staff in SWC 
2023 

Nursery 23 102 18.4% 81.6% 125 

Primary 1003 1432 41.2% 58.8% 2435 

Secondary 181 82 68.8% 31.2% 263 

Special & PRU 101 199 33.7% 66.3% 300 

LA Centrally Employed 20 27 42.6% 57.4% 47 

Southwark LA Maintained 1328 1842 41.9% 58.1% 3170 

10. 58.1% of staff employed across all phases are support staff, compared to 41.9% of teaching staff.

11. Support staff roles include roles in premises, administration and support staff.

12. 41.9% of teaching staff includes senior leaders, e.g. Headteachers, Deputy and Assistant Headteachers.

29



20 

Gender 

School Phase F (No.) M (No.) 
Not 
Specified 
(No.) 

F (%) M (%) 
Not 
Specified 
(%) 

All 
Reported 
Staff in 
SWC 
2023 

Nursery 117 8 0 93.6% 6.4% 0.0% 125 

Primary 2090 338 7 85.8% 13.9% 0.3% 2435 

Secondary 176 87 0 66.9% 33.1% 0.0% 263 

Special & PRU 218 82 0 72.7% 27.3% 0.0% 300 

LA Centrally Employed 36 11 0 76.6% 23.4% 0.0% 47 

Southwark LA Maintained 2637 526 7 83.2% 16.6% 0.2% 3170 

13. The highest number of staff employed classified themselves as female across all phases (83.3%) compared to male (16.6%).

30



 

21 
 

Age  

School Phase Nursery Primary Secondary 
Special & 
PRU 

LA Centrally 
Employed 

Southwark LA 
Maintained Total 

Under 25 (no.) 0 58 14 8 0 80 

25 to 29 (no.) 5 198 50 45 0 298 

30 to 39 (no.) 24 646 80 73 12 835 

40 to 49 (no.) 44 595 52 64 15 770 

50 to 59 (no.) 30 610 44 80 13 777 

60 and above (no.) 22 328 23 30 7 410 

Under 25 (%) 0.00% 2.40% 5.30% 2.70% 0.00% 2.50% 

25 to 29 (%) 4.00% 8.10% 19.00% 15.00% 0.00% 9.40% 

30 to 39 (%) 19.20% 26.50% 30.40% 24.30% 25.50% 26.30% 

40 to 49 (%) 35.20% 24.40% 19.80% 21.30% 31.90% 24.30% 

50 to 59 (%) 24.00% 25.10% 16.70% 26.70% 27.70% 24.50% 

60 and above (%) 17.60% 13.50% 8.70% 10.00% 14.90% 12.90% 

All Reported Staff in 
SWC 2023 

125 2435 263 300 47 3170 

 
14. In nursery provision, the highest number of staff employed were in the 40 to 49 age bracket (35.25%).  

 
15. In primary (26.5%) and secondary (30.4%) schools, the highest number of staff employed were in the 30 to 39 age bracket. In 

special schools, this was in the 50 to 59 age bracket (26.7%).  
 

16. LA Centrally employed had a higher number of staff employed in the 40 to 49 age bracket (31.9%).  
 

17. The lowest category of staff employed in an age category were in the under 25s at 2.5%.  
 

18. By comparison, secondary schools had 19% staff employed in the age 25 – 29 category. This is the highest within all phases. 
This is compared to primary schools, who only have 8.1% of their staff in this age bracket.  

31



22 

Disability Status 

School Phase 
No 
Disability 
(No.) 

With 
Disability 
(No.) 

Unclassified No 
Disability 

With 
Disability 

Unclassified 
All Reported 
Staff in SWC 
2023 

Nursery 97 0 28 77.6% 0.0% 22.4% 125 

Primary 1537 23 875 63.1% 0.9% 35.9% 2435 

Secondary 68 10 185 25.9% 3.8% 70.3% 263 

Special & PRU 233 10 57 77.7% 3.3% 19.0% 300 

LA Centrally Employed 24 0 23 51.1% 0.0% 48.9% 47 

Southwark LA Maintained 1959 43 1168 61.8% 1.4% 36.8% 3170 

19. 1.4% of staff classed themselves as having a disability.

20. 61.8% of staff did not consider themselves to have a disability.

21. This is compared with 36.8% of staff who did not disclose any information.

32



 

23 
 

Ethnicity Breakdown  
 
OVERVIEW 
 
Black, Asian or Ethnic Minority Background 
School Phase BAME 

(no.) 
Not 
BAME 
(no.) 

BAME 
(%) 

Not 
BAME 
(%) 

All 
Reported 
Staff in 
SWC 2023 

Nursery 62 63 49.6% 50.4% 125 

Primary 992 1443 40.7% 59.3% 2435 

Secondary 126 137 47.9% 52.1% 263 

Special & PRU 146 154 48.7% 51.3% 300 

LA Centrally Employed 29 18 61.7% 38.3% 47 

Southwark LA Maintained 1355 1815 42.7% 57.3% 3170 

 
22. Total percentage of staff employed across Southwark is broken down by 42.7% BAME compared to 57.3% non-BAME.  
 
Total number of staff – breakdown by main ethnic groups  

School Phase 
Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 
British 

Chinese 
Mixed / Dual 
Background 

White 
Any Other 
Ethnic 
Group 

Unclassified 

Nursery 6 29 0 5 64 6 15 

Primary 85 438 14 117 1567 57 157 

Secondary 10 62 3 10 160 6 12 

Special & PRU 8 72 1 21 159 7 32 

LA Centrally Employed 3 14 0 3 24 2 1 

Southwark LA Maintained 112 615 18 156 1974 78 217 

33



24 

Percentage of staff – breakdown by main ethnic groups 

School Phase 
Asian or 
Asian 
British 

Black or 
Black 
British 

Chinese 
Mixed / Dual 
Background 

White 

Any 
Other 
Ethnic 
Group 

Unclassified 

All 
Reported 
Staff in 
SWC 
2023 

Nursery 4.8% 23.2% 0.0% 4.0% 51.2% 4.8% 12.0% 125 

Primary 3.5% 18.0% 0.6% 4.8% 64.4% 2.3% 6.4% 2435 

Secondary 3.8% 23.6% 1.1% 3.8% 60.8% 2.3% 4.6% 263 

Special & PRU 2.7% 24.0% 0.3% 7.0% 53.0% 2.3% 10.7% 300 

LA Centrally Employed 6.4% 29.8% 0.0% 6.4% 51.1% 4.3% 2.1% 47 

Southwark LA Maintained 3.5% 19.4% 0.6% 4.9% 62.3% 2.5% 6.8% 3170 

23. Analysis by ethnic groups: The highest percentage of staff class themselves as White (62.3%). This is followed by 19.4% of
staff classing themselves as Black or Black British. 34



 

25 
 

Total number of staff – breakdown by detailed ethnicity groups 
 

School Phase 
Nursery Primary Secondary 

Special & 
PRU LA Centrally Employed 

Southwark LA 
Maintained 

Bangladeshi (no.) 3 34 1 1 0 39 

Indian (no.) 1 16 4 2 2 25 

Pakistani (no.) 1 9 0 1 0 11 

Other Asian (no.) 1 26 5 4 1 37 

Black Caribbean (no.) 19 219 26 34 3 301 

Black African (no.) 9 149 26 21 2 207 

Other Black (no.) 1 70 10 17 9 107 

Chinese (no.) 0 14 3 1 0 18 

White & Black Caribbean (no.) 1 38 4 5 0 48 

White & Black African (no.) 1 6 3 1 1 12 

White & Asian (no.) 1 15 1 3 0 20 

Other Mixed (no.) 2 58 2 12 2 76 

White British (no.) 48 1286 125 122 17 1598 

White Irish (no.) 0 56 10 5 0 71 

Other White (no.) 16 225 25 32 7 305 

Any Other Ethnic Group (no.) 6 57 6 7 2 78 

Unclassified (no.) 15 157 12 32 1 217 

All Reported Staff in SWC 2023 125 2435 263 300 47 3170 

 
  

35



26 

Total percentage of staff – breakdown by detailed ethnicity groups 

School Phase 
Nursery Primary Secondary 

Special & 
PRU LA Centrally Employed 

Southwark LA 
Maintained 

Bangladeshi (%) 2.4% 1.4% 0.4% 0.3% 0.0% 1.2% 

Indian (%) 0.8% 0.7% 1.5% 0.7% 4.3% 0.8% 

Pakistani (%) 0.8% 0.4% 0.0% 0.3% 0.0% 0.3% 

Other Asian (%) 0.8% 1.1% 1.9% 1.3% 2.1% 1.2% 

Black Caribbean (%) 15.2% 9.0% 9.9% 11.3% 6.4% 9.5% 

Black African (%) 7.2% 6.1% 9.9% 7.0% 4.3% 6.5% 

Other Black (%) 0.8% 2.9% 3.8% 5.7% 19.1% 3.4% 

Chinese (%) 0.0% 0.6% 1.1% 0.3% 0.0% 0.6% 

White & Black Caribbean (%) 0.8% 1.6% 1.5% 1.7% 0.0% 1.5% 

White & Black African (%) 0.8% 0.2% 1.1% 0.3% 2.1% 0.4% 

White & Asian (%) 0.8% 0.6% 0.4% 1.0% 0.0% 0.6% 

Other Mixed (%) 1.6% 2.4% 0.8% 4.0% 4.3% 2.4% 

White British (%) 38.4% 52.8% 47.5% 40.7% 36.2% 50.4% 

White Irish (%) 0.0% 2.3% 3.8% 1.7% 0.0% 2.2% 

Other White (%) 12.8% 9.2% 9.5% 10.7% 14.9% 9.6% 

Any Other Ethnic Group (%) 4.8% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 4.3% 2.5% 

Unclassified (%) 12.0% 6.4% 4.6% 10.7% 2.1% 6.8% 

24. Highest number of staff employed, across all phases in Southwark, class themselves as White British (50.4%).

25. The second highest category are staff from Other White background (9.6%).

26. The third highest category are staff from Black Caribbean (9.5%).

27. 6.8% of staff have not provided any classification about their ethnicity.

36



27 

Appendix 2 

SCHOOL WORKFORCE ANALYSIS – SENIOR LEADERS IN MAINTAINED SCHOOLS 

Black, Asian or Ethnic Minority Background - School Phase Level (no. & %) 

School Phase 
BAME 
(no.) 

Not 
BAME 
(no.) 

BAME 
(%) 

Not 
BAME 
(%) 

All 
Reported 
Leaders 
in SWC 
2023 

Nursery 3 6 33.3% 66.7% 9 

Primary 57 138 29.2% 70.8% 195 

Secondary 11 6 64.7% 35.3% 17 

Special & PRU 13 16 44.8% 55.2% 29 

LA Centrally Employed 2 3 40.0% 60.0% 5 

Southwark LA Maintained 86 169 33.7% 66.3% 255 

37



28 

Senior Leaders - Main Ethnic Group Breakdown – School Phase Level (numbers) 

School Phase 

Asian or 
Asian 
British 
(no.) 

Black or 
Black 
British 
(no.) 

Chinese 
(no.) 

Mixed/Dual 
backgroun
d (no.) 

White (no.) 
Any other 
ethnic 
group (no.) 

Unclassifie
d (no.) 

All 
Reported 
Leaders in 
SWC 2023 

Nursery 0 1 0 0 8 0 0 9 

Primary 1 18 1 12 148 2 13 195 

Secondary 0 4 0 1 10 1 1 17 

Special & PRU 2 5 0 3 18 0 1 29 

LA Centrally Employed 1 0 0 1 3 0 0 5 

Southwark LA 
Maintained 

4 28 1 17 187 3 15 255 

Senior Leaders – Main Ethnic Group Breakdown - School Phase Level (percentages) 

School Phase 
Asian or 
Asian 
British (%) 

Black or 
Black 
British (%) 

Chinese 
(%) 

Mixed/Dual 
backgroun
d (%) 

White (%) 
Any other 
ethnic 
group (%) 

Unclassifie
d (%) 

All 
Reported 
Leaders in 
SWC 2023 

Nursery 0.00% 11.10% 0.00% 0.00% 88.90% 0.00% 0.00% 9 

Primary 0.50% 9.20% 0.50% 6.20% 75.90% 1.00% 6.70% 195 

Secondary 0.00% 23.50% 0.00% 5.90% 58.80% 5.90% 5.90% 17 

Special & PRU 6.90% 17.20% 0.00% 10.30% 62.10% 0.00% 3.40% 29 

LA Centrally Employed 20.00% 0.00% 0.00% 20.00% 60.00% 0.00% 0.00% 5 

Southwark LA 
Maintained 

1.60% 11.00% 0.40% 6.70% 73.30% 1.20% 5.90% 255 

38



29 

Ethnic Breakdown – Numbers  

Ethnic Breakdown – Percentages 

28. The percentages are based on the number of leaders, rather than overall staffing numbers.

29. The majority of senior leaders in all phases identify as White-British (60.4%).

30. This is out of 255 senior leaders.

School Phase
Banglades

hi
Indian Pakistani

Any 

other 

Asian 

backgro

und

Black 

Caribbea

n

Black - 

African

Any 

other 

black 

backgro

und

Chinese

White 

and 

Black 

Caribbea

n

White 

and 

Black 

African

White 

and 

Asian

Any 

other 

mixed 

backgro

und

White - 

British

White - 

Irish

Any 

other 

white 

backgro

und

Any 

other 

ethnic 

group

Unclassif

ied

All 

Reported 

Leaders 

in SWC 

2023

Nursery 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 2 0 0 9

Primary 1 0 0 0 9 5 4 1 4 1 2 5 125 7 16 2 13 195

Secondary 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 3 2 1 1 17

Special & PRU 0 0 1 1 2 3 0 0 0 0 1 2 15 0 3 0 1 29

LA Centrally Employed 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 5

Southwark LA Maintained 1 1 1 1 14 10 4 1 4 1 4 8 154 10 23 3 15 255

School Phase
Banglades

hi
Indian Pakistani

Any 

other 

Asian 

backgro

und

Black 

Caribbea

n

Black - 

African

Any 

other 

black 

backgro

und

Chinese

White 

and 

Black 

Caribbea

n

White 

and 

Black 

African

White 

and 

Asian

Any 

other 

mixed 

backgro

und

White - 

British

White - 

Irish

Any 

other 

white 

backgro

und

Any 

other 

ethnic 

group

Unclassif

ied

All 

Reported 

Leaders 

in SWC 

2023

Nursery 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 66.7% 0.0% 22.2% 0.0% 0.0% 9

Primary 0.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 4.6% 2.6% 2.1% 0.5% 2.1% 0.5% 1.0% 2.6% 64.1% 3.6% 8.2% 1.0% 6.7% 195

Secondary 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 17.6% 5.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5.9% 0.0% 29.4% 17.6% 11.8% 5.9% 5.9% 17

Special & PRU 0.0% 0.0% 3.4% 3.4% 6.9% 10.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 3.4% 6.9% 51.7% 0.0% 10.3% 0.0% 3.4% 29

LA Centrally Employed 0.0% 20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 20.0% 60.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5

Southwark LA Maintained 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 5.5% 3.9% 1.6% 0.4% 1.6% 0.4% 1.6% 3.1% 60.4% 3.9% 9.0% 1.2% 5.9% 255

39



30 

Senior Leaders – Ethnic breakdown – School Ward Level (numbers)  

School Ward
Banglades

hi
Indian Pakistani

Any 

other 

Asian 

backgro

und

Black 

Caribbea

n

Black - 

African

Any 

other 

black 

backgro

und

Chinese

White 

and 

Black 

Caribbea

n

White 

and 

Black 

African

White 

and 

Asian

Any 

other 

mixed 

backgro

und

White - 

British

White - 

Irish

Any 

other 

white 

backgro

und

Any 

other 

ethnic 

group

Unclassif

ied

All 

Reported 

Leaders 

in SWC 

2023

Borough & Bankside 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 11

Camberwell Green 0 0 1 0 3 1 2 0 1 0 0 2 14 0 5 0 0 29

Champion Hill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 1 0 0 6

Chaucer 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 1 1 7

Dulwich Hill 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 6 3 0 0 0 11

Dulwich Village 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

Dulwich Wood 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 1 0 0 6

Faraday 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 0 0 0 0 6

Goose Green 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 8 0 0 0 0 10

LA Centrally Employed 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 5

London Bridge & West Bermondsey 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 7 0 1 1 1 14

Newington 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 4 0 0 0 3 9

North Bermondsey 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 8 0 1 0 0 11

North Walworth 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 2 1 0 9

Nunhead & Queen's Road 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 2 2 0 3 13

Old Kent Road 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 18 0 2 0 5 28

Peckham 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 1 5 1 2 0 1 17

Peckham Rye 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 5

Rotherhithe 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 11

Rye Lane 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 16

South Bermondsey 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 1 0 0 6

St George's 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 1 1 0 1 8

St Giles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 5 0 2 0 0 9

Surrey Docks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 2 0 0 6

Southwark LA Maintained 1 1 1 1 14 10 4 1 4 1 4 8 154 10 23 3 15 255

40



31 

Senior Leaders – Ethnic breakdown – School Ward Level (percentages) 

31. Dulwich Wood and Faraday wards have 16.7% of their senior leaders from Black Caribbean background.

32. Peckham ward has the highest number of senior leaders from Black African background (29.4%).  This is compared to other
areas where there is no representation from this group.

33. North Bermondsey is the only ward where there is representation from Chinese background (9.1%).

34. Dulwich Village, Peckham Rye and Rye Lane wards have 100% of all its senior leaders identifying from White British
background.

35. Across all phases, 60.4% of all senior leaders are White British. 9.0% are Any Other White Background. 5.9% have not disclosed
this information.

School Ward
Banglades

hi
Indian Pakistani

Any 

other 

Asian 

backgro

und

Black 

Caribbea

n

Black - 

African

Any 

other 

black 

backgro

und

Chinese

White 

and 

Black 

Caribbea

n

White 

and 

Black 

African

White 

and 

Asian

Any 

other 

mixed 

backgro

und

White - 

British

White - 

Irish

Any 

other 

white 

backgro

und

Any 

other 

ethnic 

group

Unclassif

ied

All 

Reported 

Leaders 

in SWC 

2023

Borough & Bankside 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11

Camberwell Green 0.0% 0.0% 3.4% 0.0% 10.3% 3.4% 6.9% 0.0% 3.4% 0.0% 0.0% 6.9% 48.3% 0.0% 17.2% 0.0% 0.0% 29

Champion Hill 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 83.3% 0.0% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 6

Chaucer 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 14.3% 14.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 28.6% 14.3% 0.0% 14.3% 14.3% 7

Dulwich Hill 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 54.5% 27.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11

Dulwich Village 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2

Dulwich Wood 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 66.7% 0.0% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 6

Faraday 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 16.7% 0.0% 66.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 6

Goose Green 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 10.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 10.0% 80.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 10

LA Centrally Employed 0.0% 20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 20.0% 60.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5

London Bridge & West Bermondsey 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 14.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 7.1% 0.0% 0.0% 7.1% 50.0% 0.0% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 14

Newington 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11.1% 44.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 33.3% 9

North Bermondsey 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.1% 72.7% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 11

North Walworth 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11.1% 11.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 33.3% 11.1% 22.2% 11.1% 0.0% 9

Nunhead & Queen's Road 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 15.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 7.7% 0.0% 23.1% 15.4% 15.4% 0.0% 23.1% 13

Old Kent Road 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 7.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 3.6% 0.0% 0.0% 64.3% 0.0% 7.1% 0.0% 17.9% 28

Peckham 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5.9% 0.0% 29.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5.9% 5.9% 29.4% 5.9% 11.8% 0.0% 5.9% 17

Peckham Rye 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5

Rotherhithe 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 72.7% 9.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11

Rye Lane 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 16

South Bermondsey 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 83.3% 0.0% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 6

St George's 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 12.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 12.5% 12.5% 0.0% 12.5% 8

St Giles 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11.1% 0.0% 11.1% 0.0% 55.6% 0.0% 22.2% 0.0% 0.0% 9

Surrey Docks 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 66.7% 0.0% 33.3% 0.0% 0.0% 6

Southwark LA Maintained 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 5.5% 3.9% 1.6% 0.4% 1.6% 0.4% 1.6% 3.1% 60.4% 3.9% 9.0% 1.2% 5.9% 255

41



32 

Appendix 3 

SOUTHWARK POPULATION DATA 

36. For the purposes of statistical comparison, the Southwark population data has been benchmarked against the data from the
2021 Census, based on the population by ethnicity and the London area.

Ethnicity 
Southwark Ethnic 
Population London Ethnic Population Percentage of total region 

White British 3239280 44355044 36.8 

Bangladeshi 322052 644900 3.7 

Chinese 147523 445646 1.7 

Indian 656269 1864304 7.5 

Pakistani 290553 1587822 3.3 

Any Other Asian Background 401250 972783 4.6 

Black African 697054 1488387 7.9 

Black Caribbean 345400 623115 3.9 

Any Other Black Background 145915 297781 1.7 

Mixed White And Asian 125188 488228 1.4 

Mixed White And Black African 77340 249593 0.9 

Mixed White And Black Caribbean 132557 513040 1.5 

Any Other Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Background 170691 467116 1.9 

Gypsy Or Irish Traveller 7029 67757 0.1 

Roma 37690 100964 0.4 

White 4731172 48699231 53.8 

White Irish 156335 507473 1.8 

Other 556772 1255632 6.3 

Arab 139792 331856 1.6 

Any Other Ethnic Background 416980 923776 4.7 

Asian 1817647 5515455 20.7 

Black 1188369 2409283 13.5 

Mixed 505776 1717977 5.7 

Any Other White Background 1290838 3667993 14.7 

All 8799736 59597578 100 

42



33 

Appendix 4 

BENCHMARKING OF SOUTHWARK SCHOOL STAFFING DATA (SWFC) 

37. This section deals with the comparison of the SWFC against the Southwark, London and national data.

38. Figures are from the 2021 Census, unless otherwise stated.

39. The 2021 Census includes information for both adults and children. The SWFC only relates to adults.

40. For the purposes of statistical comparison, it has not been possible to identify where staff live. On this basis, an assumption has
been made that the majority of staff working in Southwark schools are likely to be from the London area.

Sex 
School Workforce 
Census 

Southwark London England and Wales 

Female (numbers) 2637 158,640 4,531,610 30.4 million 
Female (percentage) 83.2% 51.7% 51.5% 51.0% 
Male (numbers) 526 149,005 4,268,110 29.2 million 
Male (percentage) 16.6% 48.3% 48.5% 49.0% 
Not specified (numbers) 7.0% Not reported 
Not specified (percentage) 0.2% Not reported 

41. Females are more represented in Southwark maintained schools (83.2%) in comparison with the local, regional and national
picture, where females total approximately 50% of the population.

43



34 

Race 

Ethnicity 

School Workforce Census 

Number 

School Workforce 

Census % 

Southwark Population 

Number 

Southwark 

% 

London 

% 

England & 

Wales % 

Bangladeshi 39 1.2% 5,545 1.8% 3.7% 1.1% 

Chinese 18 0.6% 8,405 5.3% 1.7% 0.7% 

Indian 25 0.8% 6,145 4.1% 7.5% 3.1% 

Pakistani 11 0.3% 2,005 0.7% 3.3% 2.7% 

Other Asian 37 1.2% 8,440 5.3% 4.6% 1.6% 

Black African 207 6.5% 48,320 32.4% 7.9% 2.5% 

Black Caribbean 301 9.5% 18,155 5.9% 3.9% 1.0% 

Other Black 107 3.4% 10,825 6.8% 1.7% 0.5% 

Mixed White/Asian 20 0.6% 4,650 3.1% 1.4% 0.8% 

Mixed White/African 12 0.4% 3,570 1.2% 0.9% 0.4% 

Mixed White/Caribbean 48 1.5% 6,405 4.0% 1.5% 0.9% 

Other Mixed/Multiple 76 2.4% 7,530 5.1% 1.9% 0.8% 

White British 1598 50.4% 109,255 35.5% 36.8% 74.4% 

White Irish 71 2.2% 6,025 3.8% 1.8% 0.9% 

Gypsy/Irish Traveller NOT REPORTED 155 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 

Roma NOT REPORTED 1,580 0.5% 0.4% 0.2% 

Any Other White 305 9.6% 41,205 26.0% 14.7% 6.2% 

Arab NOT REPORTED 3,120 2.1% 1.6% 0.6% 

Other Ethnic 78 2.5% 16,310 5.3% 4.7% 1.6% 

42. SWFC does not report on the following categories: “Gypsy/Irish Traveller”, “Roma” and “Arab”.

43. SWFC reports on “Unclassified”, which is where individuals have not provided their ethnic group. 217 staff (6.8% of the total
maintained sector staffing) did not disclose this information. This is not a category in the 2021 Census.

44. More staff identify as White British – 50.4%. Compared to the Southwark Population, 36.5% of individuals living in Southwark
and 36.8% across London identify in the same way. This is the highest category of ethnicity in all data sets.

45. 9.5% of staff employed, according the SWFC, class themselves as Black Caribbean. This is higher than both the Southwark
(5.9%) and London (3.9%) figures.

46. Staffing representation for Black African in maintained schools is 6.5%, compared to 32.4% resident in Southwark, but is more
in line with the London average of 7.9%.

44



35 

Religion or belief 

Religion 
Southwark 
Population 
Number 

Southwark 
% 

London 
% 

England & 
Wales % 

Buddhist 2,965 1.0% 0.9% 0.5% 
Christian 133,298 43.3% 40.7% 46.2% 
Hindu 3,444 1.1% 5.1% 1.7% 
Jewish 1,243 0.4% 1.7% 0.5% 
Muslim 29,633 9.6% 15.0% 6.5% 
Sikh 632 0.2% 1.6% 0.9% 
Other religion 2,149 0.7% 1.0% 0.6% 
No religion 111,935 36.4% 27.1% 37.2% 
Not answered 22,338 7.3% 7.0% 6.0% 

47. SWFC does not report on this area.

48. For the purposes of comparison, the Southwark data has been benchmarked against London and England and Wales data.

45



36 

Sexual orientation 

Sexual Orientation 
Southwark 
Population 
Number 

Southwark 
% 

London 
% 

England & 
Wales % 

Straight/Heterosexual 211,847 82.7% 86.2% 89.4% 
Gay/Lesbian 11,596 4.5% 2.2% 1.5% 
Bisexual 6,586 2.6% 1.5% 1.3% 
Pansexual 1,726 0.7% 0.1% 0.1% 
Asexual 192 0,1% 0.1% 0.1% 
Queer 446 0.2% 0.1% 0.03% 
Other orientations 152 0.1% 0.3% 0.2% 
Not answered 23,592 9.2% 9.5% 7.5% 

49. SWFC does not report on this area.

50. For the purposes of comparison, the Southwark data has been benchmarked against London and England and Wales data.

Gender reassignment 

Gender Identity 
Southwark 
Population 
Number 

Southwark 
% 

London 
% 

England & 
Wales % 

Gender identity same 
as sex at birth 

234,184 91.4% 91.2% 93.5% 

Gender identity different 
from at birth 

1,610 0.6% 0.5% 0.2% 

Trans woman 445 0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 
Trans man 466 0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 
Non-binary 410 0.2% 0.1% 0.1% 
Other gender identity 226 0.1% 0.1% 0.04% 
Not answered 18,796 7.3% 7.9% 6.0% 

51. SWFC does not report on this area.

52. For the purposes of comparison, the Southwark data has been benchmarked against London and England and Wales data.

46



37 

Pregnancy and maternity 

53. This data is covered under the ONS Live births and fertility category rather then the Census and looks at Total Fertility Rate
(TFR) - TFR is the average number of live children that a group of women would have if they experienced the age-specific
fertility rates for a calendar year in question throughout their childbearing lifespan.

54. SWFC does not report on this area.

55. For the purposes of comparison, the Southwark data has been benchmarked against London and England and Wales data.

Fertility Rate 
Southwark 
Population 

London 
England & Wales 

TFR 2021 1.14 1.58 1.61 

47



38 

Age 

Age Groups 
Southwark 
Population 

Southwark % London % 
England & 
Wales % 

0 to 4 15,834 5.1% 5.9% 5.3% 

5 to 9 15,649 5.0% 5.9% 5.8% 

10 to 14 16,077 5.2% 6.1% 6.1% 

15 to 19 16,955 5.4% 5.7% 5.8% 

20 to 24 27,275 8.7% 6.8% 6.0% 

25 to 29 39,086 12.5% 9.0% 6.5% 

30 to 34 35,716 11.0% 9.0% 7.0% 

35 to 39 25,960 8.3% 8.2% 6.7% 

40 to 44 21,733 7.0% 7.6% 6.4% 

45 to 49 19,722 6.3% 6.7% 6.1% 

50 to 54 19,078 6.1% 6.4% 6.8% 

55 to 59 18.042 5.8% 5.9% 6.8% 

60 to 64 13,932 4.5% 4.7% 6.0% 

65 to 69 9,263 3.0% 3.6% 5.0% 

70 to 74 6,449 2.1% 3.0% 4.7% 

75 to 79 4,850 1.6% 2.3% 4.0% 

80 to 84 3,284 1.1% 1.6% 2.5% 

85 to 89 1,868 0.6% 1.0% 1.6% 

90 and over 1,140 0.4% 0.6% 0.9% 

56. These figures are ONS Midyear Estimates for 2022 rather than the Census 2021 and represent the percentage of each age
cohort across Southwark, London and England and Wales, in equal 5 year cohorts.

57. SWFC reports on the following banding – under 25. Anyone from 0 to 14 years of age has been discounted from this data, on
the basis that this information relates to individuals of working age.

58. The following benchmarking data has been adjusted to reflect the age brackets used in the SWFC, for ease of comparison
purposes.

48



39 

SWFC Age Group What it includes 
SWFC 
Numbers SWFC % 

Southwark 
Population Southwark % London % 

England 
and 
Wales % 

Under 25 Includes 15 to 19 and 20 to 24 80 2.50% 44,230 21.2% 12.50% 11.80% 

25 to 29 25 to 29 298 9.40% 39,086 12.50% 9.00% 6.50% 

30 to 39 Includes 30 to 34 and 35 to 39 835 26.30% 61,676 19.30% 17.20% 13.70% 

40 to 49 Includes 40 to 44 and 45 to 49 770 24.30% 41,455 13.30% 14.30% 12.50% 

50 to 59 Includes 50 to 54 and 55 to 59 777 24.50% 19,096 11.90% 12.30% 13.60% 

60 and above 60 to over 410 12.90% 40,786 13.30% 16.80% 24.70% 

59. Southwark staff in maintained schools tend to be in the region of 30 to 59 (on average). These figures are higher than in the
Southwark or London population, but are aligned nationally with England and Wales.

49



40 

Disability 

Area name 
Disabled Day-to-
day activities 
limited a lot 

Disabled Day-to-day 
activities limited a 
little 

Not 
disabled 

Southwark Population 
Numbers 25,577 29,320 257,016 

Southwark % 8.2% 9.4% 82.4% 

London % 7.2% 8.6% 84.2% 

England and Wales % 7.5% 10.3% 82.2% 

60. SWFC does not distinguish between “Disabled day to day activities limited a lot” and “Disabled day to day activities limited a

little”.

61. For ease of comparison with the SWFC, this data has been added in one column.

Area name Disabled Not disabled 
SWFC Only - 
Unclassified 

SWFC Numbers 43 1959 1168 

SWFC % 1.40% 61.80% 36.80% 

Southwark 
Population Numbers 

54,897 257,016 
N/A 

Southwark % 17.60% 82.40% N/A 

London % 15.80% 84.20% N/A 

England and Wales 
% 

17.80% 82.20% 
N/A 

62. There is a lower percentage of staff, according to the SWFC, who class themselves as disabled (1.4%). However, 36.8% of

staff did not disclose if they had a disability or not.

50



41 

Marriage and civil partnership 

63. SWFC does not report on this area.

64. For the purposes of comparison, the Southwark data has been benchmarked against London and England and Wales data.

Status 
Southwark 
Population 
numbers 

Southwark 
% 

London % 
England & 
Wales % 

Never married/registered civil 
partnership 

152,587 48.9% 40.7% 36.6% 

Married or registered civil 
partnership 

97,198 31.2% 41.8% 45.5% 

Separated, but still legally 
married/in a civil partnership 

10,547 3.4% 2.5% 2.3% 

Divorced 31,993 10.3% 8.8% 9.4% 

Widowed/surviving partner 
from a civil partnership 

19,543 6.3% 6.2% 6.2% 

51



42 

NEXT STEPS 

Understanding the workforce in school closures / amalgamations  

65. The  Equalities Impact  Assessment  for  restructures/redundancies has
recently been reviewed  and updated, following consultation with the
Education Southwark Stands Together Sub-Group and trade unions.

66. This now includes all the protected characteristics defined in the Equality
Act 2010.

Flexible working 

67. Southwark Schools HR is in the process of reviewing its model flexible
working policy and procedure to take into consideration the changes due in
April 2024. We will write to schools to inform them of the changes and the
need to update their school flexible working policy and procedure.

Professional and Development Curriculum (PDC) Network 

68. The PDC network is a group of volunteers that includes senior leaders and
governors in schools and local authority officers.

69. The group’s role is to focus on enabling leaders and governors to
implement a whole-school strategy to instil and embed racial equality and
the evaluation of schools’ curricula.

70. Under-represented groups need to be shaping the curriculum that engages
young people.

71. Deeper cultural awareness and training needs to be a part of staff induction
and ongoing INSET as Safeguarding currently is.

Education Divisional Liaison Committee 

72. Trade unions to share their equalities data as part of this committee, so
there is a joint council/trade union approach to supporting schools address
inequity, where this is the case.

Partnership Working 

73. Partnership working with all relevant stakeholders, including council
officers, school representatives and trade unions to support schools to
share and implement good practice.

52



43 

Policy framework implications 

74. This report is not considered to have direct policy implications.

Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts

Community impact statement 

75. This report is not considered to contain any proposals that would have a

significant impact on any particular community or group.

Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement 

76. This report is not considered to contain any proposals that would have a

significant equalities impact.

Health impact statement 

77. This report is not considered to contain any proposals that would have a

significant health impact.

Climate change implications 

78. This report is not considered to contain any proposals that would have a

significant impact on climate change.

Resource implications 

79. If there are direct resource implications in this report, these will be met from

existing budget provision

Consultation 

80. There has been no consultation on this report.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 

81. None required.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Background Papers Held At Contact 

ACAS advice for employees and 
employers on dealing with 
discrimination and bullying  

Discrimination and 
bullying | Acas 

The Black Nursery Manager The Black Nursery 
Manager 

53

https://www.acas.org.uk/discrimination-and-bullying
https://www.acas.org.uk/discrimination-and-bullying
https://www.theblacknurserymanager.com/
https://www.theblacknurserymanager.com/


44 

Collecting and publishing 
governing board diversity data 

What maintained 
schools must publish 
online - GOV.UK
(www.gov.uk) 

DfE Flexible Working in Schools  Flexible working in 
schools - GOV.UK
(www.gov.uk) 

Keeping Children Safe in 
Education 

Keeping Children Safe 
in Education (Statutory 
Guidance)  

Regional ethnic diversity data 
(based on the 2021 Census)  

Regional ethnic 
diversity - GOV.UK 
Ethnicity facts and 
figures (ethnicity-facts-
figures.service.gov.uk) 

Legislation  

Employment Rights Act 1996 Employment Righst 
Act 1996 
(legislation.gov.uk)  

The Equality Act 2010 Equality Act 2010 
(legislation.gov.uk) 

Employment Relations (Flexible 
Working) Act 2023   

CIPD - new
Employment Relations 
(Flexible Working) Act 
2023 

Flexible Working Regulations 
2014  

Flexible Working 
Regulations 2014 
(legislation.gov.uk) 

School Standards and 
Framework Act 1998 (as 
amended)  

School Standards and 
Framework Act 1998 
(legislation.gov.uk) 

School Staffing (England) 
Regulations 2009 (as amended) 

The School Staffing 
(England) Regulations 
2009 
(legislation.gov.uk) 

Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992  

Trade Union and 
Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 
1992 

AUDIT TRAIL 

Lead Officer Alasdair Smith, Director Children’s Services 

Report Author 

Version Final 
Shereen Moussa, Head of Schools Human Resources

54

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/what-maintained-schools-must-publish-online#governors-information-and-duties
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/what-maintained-schools-must-publish-online#governors-information-and-duties
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/what-maintained-schools-must-publish-online#governors-information-and-duties
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/what-maintained-schools-must-publish-online#governors-information-and-duties
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/flexible-working-in-schools/flexible-working-in-schools--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/flexible-working-in-schools/flexible-working-in-schools--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/flexible-working-in-schools/flexible-working-in-schools--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/keeping-children-safe-in-education--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/keeping-children-safe-in-education--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/keeping-children-safe-in-education--2
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/uk-population-by-ethnicity/national-and-regional-populations/regional-ethnic-diversity/latest/#download-the-data
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/uk-population-by-ethnicity/national-and-regional-populations/regional-ethnic-diversity/latest/#download-the-data
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/uk-population-by-ethnicity/national-and-regional-populations/regional-ethnic-diversity/latest/#download-the-data
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/uk-population-by-ethnicity/national-and-regional-populations/regional-ethnic-diversity/latest/#download-the-data
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/uk-population-by-ethnicity/national-and-regional-populations/regional-ethnic-diversity/latest/#download-the-data
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/18/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/18/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/18/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
https://www.cipd.org/uk/views-and-insights/thought-leadership/cipd-voice/master-thought-leadership-uk/
https://www.cipd.org/uk/views-and-insights/thought-leadership/cipd-voice/master-thought-leadership-uk/
https://www.cipd.org/uk/views-and-insights/thought-leadership/cipd-voice/master-thought-leadership-uk/
https://www.cipd.org/uk/views-and-insights/thought-leadership/cipd-voice/master-thought-leadership-uk/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/1398/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/1398/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/1398/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/31/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/31/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/31/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/2680/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/2680/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/2680/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/2680/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/52/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/52/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/52/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/52/contents


45 

Dated 

Key Decision? No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / 
CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments 
Included 

Director of Law and Governance No 

Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance 

No 

List other officers here 

Cabinet Member No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team / 
Scrutiny Team 

22 January 2024

22 January 2024

55



  1  

  

  

    

  

Item No.   

9 

  

Classification:  

Open  

Date:  

30 January 2024  

Meeting Name:  

Education and Local  

Economy Scrutiny  

Commission  

  

Report title:  

  

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny  

Commission Work Programme 2023-24  

  

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:  
  

N/A  

From:  

  

Scrutiny Officer 

  

  

RECOMMENDATIONS  

  

1. That the education and local economy scrutiny commission note the work 

programme as at 30 January 2024 attached as Appendix 1.  

  

2. That the education and local economy scrutiny commission consider the 

addition of new items or allocation of previously identified items to specific 

meeting dates of the commission.  

  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION   

  

3. The general terms of reference of the scrutiny commissions are set out in 

the council’s constitution (overview and scrutiny procedure rules - 

paragraph 5).  The constitution states that:  

  

Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will:  

  

a) review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with 

the discharge of any of the council’s functions  

  

b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 

cabinet and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and 

over time in areas covered by its terms of reference  

  

c) review and scrutinise the performance of the council in relation to its 

policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas  

  

d) question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and 

performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and 

56
Agenda Item 9



  2  

  

  

    

targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, 

initiatives or projects and about their views on issues and proposals 

affecting the area  

  

e) assist council assembly and the cabinet in the development of its budget 

and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues  

  

f) make reports and recommendations to the cabinet and or council 

assembly arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process  

  

g) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants  

  

h) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 

national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are 

enhanced by collaborative working  

  

i) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area 

and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the scrutiny 

committee and local people about their activities and performance  

  

j) conduct research and consultation on the analysis of policy issues and 

possible options  

  

k) question and gather evidence from any other person (with their consent)  

  

l) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 

community participation in the scrutiny process and in the development 

of policy options  

  

m) conclude inquiries promptly and normally within six months  

  

4. The work programme document lists those items which have been or are 

to be considered in line with the commission’s terms of reference.  

  

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION   

  

5. Set out in Appendix 1 (Work Programme) are the issues the education and 

local economy scrutiny commission is due to consider in 2023-24.  

  

6. The work programme is a standing item on the education and local 

economy scrutiny commission agenda and enables the commission to 

consider, monitor and plan issues for consideration at each meeting. 

 

 

 

57



  3  

  

  

    

7. As of 20 May 2023 the commission also now has within in its remit the 

cabinet portfolio elements listed below:  

  

Children, Education & Refugees (Councillor Jasmine Ali, Deputy 

Leader and Cabinet Member) 

 

 Early years and childcare – including children and family centres, early 
years education, childminders and nurseries  

 Schools – including school standards, inclusion, places and admissions; 
special education needs; free healthy school and nursery meals and 
fruit; healthy schools and Southwark’s Let's Go Zero schools network  

 Further, higher and adult education – including English for speakers 
of other languages (ESOL), adult literacy and numeracy; and 
scholarships  

 Children’s social care – including children in care and care leavers, 
fostering and adoption, support for children with disabilities and their 
families; and child safeguarding 

 Family support – including parenting programmes, the council’s sure-
start for teenagers service and support for families who are providing 
unpaid care for a child with a disability or health condition, including 
respite care  

 Youth offending services. 
 

Jobs, Skills & Business (Councillor Martin Seaton) 

 

 Increasing employment - support to find a job or start a new carer; 
careers advice and work experience; paid internships; supporting young 
people and care leavers’ into employment, education and training; 
relationship with Jobcentre Plus; supporting businesses to engage with 
schools and colleges (including the Education Business Alliance) 

 Vocational Skills - including apprenticeships, vocational training and 
skills centres  

 Businesses support - for local businesses, cooperatives, social 
enterprises and entrepreneurs; increasing procurement from local 
businesses; and relationships with local business groups and Business 
Improvement Districts. 

 High streets – including town centre action plans, Thriving Highstreets 
Fund, markets  

 Commercial property – management, leasing and rent setting of the 
council’s retail and commercial units, office accommodation and related 
property  

 Industrial strategy - growing industries that generate good jobs and 
wider value for our community, including green industries, life sciences 
and creative and cultural industries  

 Living Wage - promoting the London Living Wage employers  

 Workers’ rights - promoting good employment practices and equality 
and diversity at work and trade union membership. 

58



  4  

  

  

    

Young People (Councillor Portia Mwangangye) 

 

 Increasing the voice and influence of young people  

 Southwark Youth Parliament  

 The council’s in-house and commissioned youth services  

 Positive Futures Fund  

 Southwark Young Advisors. 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  

  

Background Papers  Held At  Contact  

Education and Local 
Economy Scrutiny 
Commission agenda and 
minutes   
  

Southwark 

Council Website   

Amit Alva  

Amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk   

Link: 

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=550&Year=0  

  

  

  

APPENDICES  

  

No.  Title  

Appendix 1  Work Programme 2023-24  

  

  

AUDIT TRAIL  

  

Lead Officer  Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

Report Author  Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

Version  Final  

Dated   22 January 2024  

Key Decision?  No  

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /   

CABINET MEMBER  

Officer Title  Comments Sought  Comments Included  

Director of Law and Governance  No  No  

Strategic Director of  

Finance and Governance  

No  No  

Cabinet Member   No  No  

Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team    22 January 2024 

 

59

mailto:Amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=550&Year=0


 Appendix 1 
 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission Work Programme – 2023/24 

 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19 July 2023 

 
Community Wealth Building (CWB) in Southwark 
 
To evaluate Southwark’s strength and weaknesses 
regarding Community Wealth Building - according to 
the five pillars: 
 

 Plural ownership of the economy 

 Making financial power work for local places 

 Fair employment and just labour markets 

 Progressive procurement of goods and services 

 Socially productive use of land and property 
 

 
Commission received a report from Southwark’s 
Local Economy team on council’s role in 
Community Wealth Building (CWB). Officers- Nick 
Wolff, Principal Strategy Officer, Chief Executive’s 
and Danny Edwards, Head of Economy. 

 
School Amalgamations and Closures in Southwark 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Commission received feedback/report from 
Freddy Vanson, District & Branch Joint Secretary, 
National Education Union (NEU) Southwark 
Branch, on School Amalgamations and Closures 
in Southwark especially with regards to 
redundancies with a focus on disproportionate 
redundancies and disciplinary amongst Black 
Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) school staff.  
 

60



 Appendix 1 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19 October 2023 
 

 
St Mary Magdalene C of E Primary School (SMMS) 

 Demographics of the school 

 Avoiding closure and amalgamation  

 Council’s role and communication 

 Suggestions to improve council strategy on 
falling rolls 
 

 
To hear from Anna Harding, Head teacher and 
Sonia Phippard, Chair of Governors on the plans 
for closure/amalgamation of the St Mary 
Magdalene C of E Primary School. 
 

 
The Restructure of Kintore Way Nursery School and 
Children's Centre. 

 Financial Challenges 

 Mitigation Strategies 

 Potential impact on the school's educational 
programs and services 

 Plans to collaborate or integrate with other 
educational institutions 

 Prioritising the interests of students and the 
community throughout this process 

 

 
To receive a report from Matthew Waterfall and 
Sasha Das Gupta from the National Association of 
Headteachers (NAHT) on the restructure of 
Kintore Way Nursey School. 

 
Employment for young people in Southwark. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To receive a report from Patrick Doherty, Principal 
Strategy Officer and Danny Edwards, Head of 
Economy on youth employment.  

61



 Appendix 1 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5 December 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Education, Health Care Plan (EHCP) process, 
demand and timeliness. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
To receive a report from Alasdair Smith, Director, 
Children & Families, Children's and Adults' 
Services, Anna Chiva, Assistant Director for 
SEND, Children and Adult Services and Michael 
Crowe, Service Development Manager, Children's 
and Adults' Services on EHCP demand, process, 
timeliness and programme improvements. 

 
An update on St Mary Magdalene C of E Primary 
School and Kintore Way Nursery School and 
Children's Centre. 
 

 
To receive a verbal/written update from Councillor 
Jasmine Ali, Cabinet Member for Children, 
Education & Refugees and  Alasdair Smith, 
Director, Children & Families, Children's and 
Adults' Services on  St Mary Magdalene C of E 
Primary School and Kintore Way Nursery School. 
 

 
 
Youth Employment- St Giles Trust 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
To hear from Carleigh Grogan from St Giles Trust 
on Youth Employment programs and the council’s 
role in these programs. 

62



 Appendix 1 
 

Meeting Agenda Items Comment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30 January 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Proposed Amalgamation of St. Jude's and Charlotte 
Sharman Primary Schools 

 
Proposed Amalgamation of St. Jude's and 
Charlotte Sharman Primary Schools 

 

 Impact of school closures and amalgamations on: 
 

 Black and Asian Minority Ethnic (BAME) school 
staff and pupils 

 Male and Female members of school staff 
(data breakup) 

 LGBTQ staff 
 Disabled members of school staff 
 Senior Leadership Team in schools 
 School Support Staff (low-paid) 
 Governors 
 Schools exclusions data. 

 
 BAME school staff disciplinary data 

 Flexible working requests in schools (job-

shares, part-time) 

 

 
To receive a report from Alasdair Smith, Director 
of Children & Families, Children's and Adults' 
Services and Shereen Moussa, Head of Schools 
Human Resources, Children's and Adults' 
Services and the impact of school closures and 
amalgamations 
 
 
 
 

 East Street Market renovation project To receive an update from R. Lindon and Shade 
Abdul on the East Street Market renovation 
project. 
 

 Cabinet Member Interview- Jobs Skills and 
Business ( Local Economy) 

To interview Councillor Martin Seaton the Cabinet 
Member for Jobs, Skills and Business covering a 
holistic overview of key strategies and projects 
under the portfolio, supported by Danny Edwards, 
Head of Economy. 

63



 Appendix 1 
 

Upcoming 
Meetings 

Agenda items Comment 

 
22 February 2024 

 

 Interview with Cabinet Member Children, 

Education & Refugees.  

 
 Keep Education Strong strategy with 

regards to the extent it goes to avoid 

closures. 

 Local Authority Nursery Provision 

 

 
All agenda items to be confirmed. 

 
14 March 2024 

 

 Falling school rolls and its experience from 

interviewing parents, teachers and head teachers 

 

 Live relocation strategy for businesses  

 
 

 Council Process for scrutinising S-106 

agreements and business community 

engagement. 

 

 Reviewing Council’s approach to inclusion 

including children with Special Educational 

Needs and Disabilities (SEND). 

 

 Southwark Stands Together (SST) role and 

successes, focusing on benefits to BAME school 

staff. 

 
All agenda items to be confirmed. 

64



 Appendix 1 
 

 

 

 Update on Children’s Safeguarding Partnership 

in Southwark since its evolution and restructuring 

in 2022-2023. 

 

 Community Wealth Building (CWB) focusing on  

procurement, social value and employment for 

young people 

 

 Policies for Southwark small and medium 

enterprises (SME) to help boost the local 

economy sector in Southwark especially planning 

and regeneration projects. 65



 

66



  

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission     
  

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24  

  

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)  

  

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Amit Alva Tel: 020 7525 

0496  
  

  

Name  No of 
copies  

Name  No of 
copies  

  
Electronic Copy  
  
Members:  
  

  Councillor Chloe Tomlinson (Chair) 
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor  Joseph Vambe 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 

 
Education Representatives  
Martin Brecknell                                                     
Lynette Murphy O’Dwyer  
  
Parent Governor Representatives  
Marcin Jagodzinski  
Jonathan Clay 
  
Reserves Members  
  
Councillor Maggie Browning 
Councillor Bethan Roberts 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Victoria Mills 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Sunil Chopra 
Councillor Adam Hood  

  
  Joseph Brown – Senior Cabinet Officer  
  

  
Euan Cadzow-Webb - Liberal Democrat  
Group Office  
 
Sarauniya Shehu- Cabinet Office Manager 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  
Dated: January 2024 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

67


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Impact of school closures and amalgamations - Human Resources Data
	9 Work Programme 2023-2024
	Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission Work Programme 2023-2024

	 Distribution List 2021/22
	DistributionList EdLoEcSC 2023-24, 22/01/2024




